
 
 

 Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tues day, April 15, 2025, at 6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon  
 



 

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held May 21, 2025 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 

Agenda: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 @ 6:00pm 
 

 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda 
5. Oath of Office – New Board Director 
6. Public & Guest Comments 
7. Executive Session: None 

 
STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

8. Financial and Grant Reports (February) (Pgs.1-23) 
9. Service Performance Reports (February) (Pgs. 24-31) 
10. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (April) (Pgs.32-33) 
11. NW Rides Brokerage Report (March) (Pg. 34) 
12. General Manager Report (Pgs. 35- 41) 

a. Administration/Coordination 
b. Planning/Development 
c. Grant Funding 
d. Facility/Property Management 
e. Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

13. Miscellaneous 
 
CONSENT 

14. Motion to Approve the Minutes of March 19, 2025, Regular Board Meeting (Pgs.42-46) 
15. Motion to Approve February 2025 Financial Statements 
16. Motion to Reappoint Ron Rush to the Budget Committee 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

17. Resolution 25-07 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 2 to 
ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement Number 35084 (Pgs.47-53) 

18. Resolution 25-08 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to 
ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement Number 35325 (Pgs.54-59) 

19. Appointment to Board of Directors – Position 4 (Expiring June 30, 2027) (Pg.60) 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

20. Staff Comments 
21. Board of Directors Comments 
22. Adjournment 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS 
FY 2025-2026 Budget Committee Meeting – Thursday, May 15, 2025 @ 6:00 PM 

 
 
 
 
  

To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (253) 215-8782   Meeting ID: 874 4875 2742 
To attend virtually, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87448752742 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/


1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



TCTD Operations 
Statistics & 
Performance
February 2025

24



YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE

52267

4672 5669

61004

5534 6588

IN-COUNTY DEVIATED FIXED ROUTE INTERCITY DIAL-A-RIDE

RAW PASSENGER COUNTS

Feb-25 Feb-24

25



IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE
YTD COMPS

24982

1618

16648

7080

1939 02946 2639

17097

9139

2883 2067

RT 1 (TOWN LOOP) RT 2 
(NETARTS/OCEANSIDE)

RT 3 (CANNON BEACH) RT 4 (LINCOLN CITY) RT 6 (PORT LOOP) PC SHUTTLE

Feb-25 Feb-24

26



DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE
YTD COMPS

2477

3192

4237

2351

TILLAMOOK COUNTY PROGRAM

Feb-25 Feb-24

27



PASSENGER CATEGORIES
YTD COMPS

454
1094

290

5269

462 54801

1663

502

6084

694 0

RIDE CONNECTION TILLAMOOK BAY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

NWOTA VISITOR PASS YOUTH FREE AMTRAK BICYCLES

Feb-25 Feb-24

28



TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP
February 2025 & February 2024

6836

5820

540

440

786

813

2024

2025

In-County Inter-City DAR

29



30



31



Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting 
April 11, 2025 | 10:00 am—12:00 pm 

VIRTUAL 
Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00- 
10:05a  Introductions Cynda Bruce 

10:05- 
10:45a 

 Zero Emissions Study 
Draft Report Overview 

Erik Belmont 
Gannett Fleming 

10:45 -
10:55a 

 Consent Calendar (Action Item) 
March Meeting Minutes 
Financial Report   

Cynda Bruce/All 

10:55- 
11:10a 

NWOTA Standing Items 
Emissions/Ridership Tracking 
Website Updates: 

- Swiftly Updates

Sarah Lu Heath 
All 

11:10- 
11:30a E-Bike Policy Discussion

 
All 

11:30-
11:35a Bus Stop Project Update Brian Vitulli 

11:35- 
11:45a 

New Business All 

11:45a- 
12:00p Member Updates All 

Attachments: 
March Meeting Minutes  
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking 

Meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities.  If 
a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

32

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2025 

Virtual meeting called to order at 10:04a. 

In attendance: Debbie Boothe-Schimdt, Cynda Bruce, Tracy Dorsey, Cody Franz, Sarah Lu Heath, Circe 
Torruellas, Brian Vitulli, and Chris Wheatley.  

Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study:   Tracy Dorsey and Circe Torruellas from Gannett Fleming 
joined the meeting to review facilities for several of the agencies. Information about driving patterns, 
building configuration, and parking habits were provided to the consulting team.  

Consent Calendar:  Minutes were reviewed and name spelling errors corrected. Financials were 
reviewed. Sarah Lu inquired about the difference in Working Capital and the NWOTA bank statement. 
Cathy Bond came into the meeting and answered that the discrepancy needed further investigation and is 
a carry over from the staff transition. It was also noted that the budget needed to be corrected in Web 
Services to show $40,000 annual expense and Marketing to show $5,000 annual expense.  

A motion to accept the minutes and financials with amendments was made by Brian Vitulli, seconded by 
Debbie Boothe-Schmidt and passed unanimously.  

Standing Items:  MAC website report was included in the packet. The branding update was completed. 
The MAC team is now looking at what next steps should be taken to further leverage these new assets.    

Real-time tracking progress was updated. Swiftly equipment continues to be problematic. Mike Reed 
from TCTD joined the conversation and shared their positive experiences with Samsara which can provide 
the APIs that MAC needs to provide real-time tracking on nwconnector.org.  

E-Bike Policy Discussion: The group reviewed possible amendments that were borrowed from  Lane
County Transit. It was noted that we should include a rule against charging e-bikes onboard transit
vehicles. It was also requested that the term ‘personal electronic vehicle’ be adopted to cover myriad
machines. While there are pros and cons to addressing weight, it was concluded to retain a 55 pound
weight limit.

Bus Stop Project: Brian shared the Jordan Ramis has received comments on the RFP draft. Once they’re 
incorporated, the RFP will be shared with qualified firms.  

CW Rides Collaboration: Sarah Lu shared highlights from an informal meeting that she and Charlene 
Pech attended to discuss opportunities with Matthew Lehman and Justin Peterson of the Cascades West 
COG.  

Other Business:  None. 

Member Updates:       

SETD is seeking qualified candidates for the Executive Director and Human Resources positions. 

TCTD shared that they provided testimony in support of STIF funding at the JC Transportation & 
Infrastructure. Additionally, they are procuring several new vehicles.  

LCT is working on their STIF audits.  

The meeting was adjourned 12:27pm. 

33



Providers
Trips=4,635

Miles= 102,385
Volunteers
Trips= 559

Miles= 27,901 Mileage
Reimbursement

Trips= 1,645
Miles= 66,629

TOTAL
Trips= 6,839
Miles= 196,915

NW Rides
March 

34



Tillamook County Transportation District 
  “Connecting the community through sustainable transit services” 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-8005 
www.tillamookbus.com 

DATE: April 15, 2025 

TO: TCTD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  

Administration/Coordination 

• The March 25, 2025 Headlight Herald included a featured article highlighting the great work
being done by the District to assist dialysis patients accessing life sustaining care since the U.S.
Renal Care facility in Tillamook closed over one year ago. (See page 3.)

• On March 26, the Tillamook County Transportation District was presented a Certificate of
Appreciation by the Tillamook County Board of Commissioners for our service to dialysis
patients over the past year. (See page 4.)

• Attended OTA Legislative Committee meeting on April 2.
• Internal budget development meetings occurring regularly.
• Career Exploration Sessions started on April 2 at Nestucca High School. These sessions occur

every week and travel to all three high schools through May.
• Attended OTA Board of Directors meeting in Salem on April 1. Also participated in OTA-led

Transit Day at the Capital where transit leaders and advocates met with legislators to highlight
the benefits of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund program and to discuss an
increase in the employee payroll tax over the next four biennia through 2033.

• Attended ODOT Public Transportation Advisory Committee meeting on April 8.
• Attended ODOT Region 2 Roundtable meeting on April 10.
• Attended Northwest Area Commission on Transportation (NWACT) meeting on April 10.
• NWOTA meeting held on April 11.

Planning & Development 

• Attended ODOT’s Priority Bus Network Study meeting on March 26.
• The Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study is continuing. The consultant team is proceeding

with analysis and document development. Project coordination meeting held on March 27.
• The phase 1 Request for Qualifications for the NWOTA Bus Stop Access Project is being

finalized before release. Phase 1 tasks include final design and obtaining permits for the three

35



P a g e  | 2 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-2834 
www.tillamookbus.com 

locations (Pacific City, Hebo, Waldport), and a NEPA analysis of the Hebo location. The District 
will then seek responses from three qualified firms and proceed with contracting. 

• Met with Oregon Coast Visitor Association staff on April 9 regarding the OCVA’s 2025 pilot
shuttle.

Grant Funding 

• Submitted two, ODOT STIF-Discretionary grant applications for 1) New fire alarm system for
administration building and vehicle maintenance facility, and 2) Shelters for enhanced bus
stop infrastructure constructed as part of the U.S. 101 upgrade project in Garibaldi. ODOT
recommended approval of both projects to the Public Transportation Advisory Committee
(PTAC). PTAC approved funding for both projects – 100% of ask for the fire alarm system and
$71,997 (out of $80,000) for bus stop infrastructure in Garibaldi.  Oregon Transportation
Commission consideration is scheduled for March 3, 2025. Learned in late February that the
FTA deemed the Fire Alarm application not eligible.

• Submitted Federal Formula (5310 & 5311) grant applications to ODOT on November 20, 2024.
Funding will be used for preventive maintenance, capital vehicle purchases, and operations.
Marie Mills Center, Inc. submitted for 5310 funds through the District as the lead agency.
Their award will be used for preventive maintenance of their fleet. PTAC consideration is
scheduled for April 2025.

• FY 2025-2027 Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Formula Funding Plan
application was submitted to ODOT on January 16, 2025 to cover the period July 1, 2025
through June 30, 2027. (The Board of Directors approved this Plan at January 2025 meeting.)
On April 8,  the Public Transportation Advisory Committee approved all STIF Plans at their
April meeting. Final approval to be considered by the Oregon Transportation Commission at
their May meeting.

Facility/Property Management 

• Transit Center exterior / platform cleaning occurs weekly and on an as-needed basis.
• NW Rides Brokerage expansion is progressing.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

• During week of April 7, assisted the North County Recreation District during their parking lot
resurfacing project by serving three satellite parking locations in Nehalem. (See page 5.)

• New Request for Quotes for four new Category B buses closed on April 11, 2025.
• Two new category B buses are being manufactured and will be delivered in 2025.
• Two heavy-duty Category B trolley-replica buses have been ordered.
• Two Category E1 DAR vans are being manufactured and will be delivered in 2025.

36



Featured 

TCTD steps up for dialysis patients 
Will Chappell Headlight Editor Mar 26, 2025 Updated Mar 31, 2025 

TCTD driver Jeremy Bellante assists Martin Boge into a district van for his ride to dialysis treatment in Forest Grove 
on March 17.  

Courtesy Tillamook County Transportation District 

Since last year’s closure of the dialysis clinic in Tillamook, the Tillamook County Transportation 
District has provided or paid for more than $200,000 in transportation costs to get patients to 
Lincoln City, Astoria and Forest Grove for life sustaining care. 

Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) General Manager Brian Vitulli said that 
coordinating the 115,000 miles of transportation has been a complex logistical dance for district 
staff. 

“It’s like conducting an orchestra, really,” Vitulli said, “it’s just the amount of coordination and 
the amount of teamwork that goes on here is incredible.” 

Even before the February 2024 closure of the U.S. Renal Care dialysis center in Tillamook, TCTD 
provided rides to their thrice weekly dialysis appointments through four different programs. But 
when U.S. Renal Care made the decision to shutter the center, they did not communicate with 
the district to help establish a plan to get patients to their new centers in Lincoln City, Astoria or 
Forest Grove. 

37

https://www.tillamookheadlightherald.com/users/profile/Will%20Chappell


“That caught us very much by surprise, you know, that the clinic could just pull out of town like 
that and there not be any kind of plan for how to care for those patients or transport those 
patients to other centers,” Vitulli said. 

However, district staff buckled down and tackled the transportation task by relying on the 
programs that were already making patient transport possible, according to Vitulli. Those 
programs include the Northwest Rides Nonemergency Medical Transportation Brokerage, the 
district’s in-house dial-a-ride program, grants received to transport veterans and reimbursement 
to patient family members. 

The brokerage, run by the Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization, covers Tillamook, 
Clatsop and Columbia Counties and relies on a network of volunteer drivers to transport 
Medicaid- and Oregon-Health-Plan-eligible patients to medical appointments. Vitulli said that 
the brokerage was covering just over 50% of the rides. 

A further 40% of rides are being provided by TCTD’s dial-a-ride program, which has put a strain on 
that program’s capacity, according to Vitulli. For the most part, patients’ dialysis treatment 
schedules have not been coordinated and the long travel times to the clinics have largely meant 
that drivers stay for the duration of the three-and-a-half to five-hour treatment. 

“It’s way outside of our service area and it doesn’t make sense for us to bring that driver back in a 
lot of cases,” Vitulli said, “so pretty much, you know, the vehicle and that driver is busy for that 
entire time transporting them there and then transporting them back.” 

District dispatchers have done their best to coordinate other rides for the drivers in areas of the 
county closer to the dialysis centers, but that has been difficult. Vitulli said that dialysis transport 
was requiring two to four drivers’ time on an average day, constraining the program’s ability to 
serve other community members. 

“This is the reason we’re at our capacity,” Vitulli said, “because we’re not able to provide as much 
dial-a-ride service because we’re providing a life-sustaining service for people who have no other 
way to get there.” 

Vitulli said that the program would be able to expand capacity again once the Tillamook dialysis 
center reopens. He also noted that the district faces persistent driver shortages and is looking to 
hire new employees, adding that they paid for training. 

Veterans are also transported by the dial-a-ride program, with the costs for their transport are 
offset by grants from the federal government. 

The final piece of the transportation equation comes from patient family members who are 
reimbursed by the district for their mileage. 

Overall, Vitulli said the district has helped with transport or reimbursement for an average of 11 
or 12 patients weekly, ranging up to 16 in some weeks. 

38



TILLAMOOK COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Erin Skaar - Paul Fournier - Mary Faith Bell 

BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, March 26, 2025, 9:00 AM 

Join In Person: 
County Courthouse, Board of Commissioners’ Meeting Room 106, 201 Laurel Avenue, Tillamook 

Join Virtually: 
tillamookcounty.gov/bocc/page/meetings-agendas-minutes or 1-971-254-3149, ID: 866 914 607# 

Additional viewing options are available at tctvonline.com. Closed captioning and translation options are 
available for recorded videos at www.youtube.com/@tillamookcounty1434. 

More detailed meeting instructions are available at tillamookcounty.gov/bocc/page/meetings-agendas-minutes. 
Call 503-842-1814 or send an email to helpdesk@tillamookcounty.gov regarding any meeting technical issues.  

CALL TO ORDER

1. Welcome & Request to Sign Guest List

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment

4. Non-Agenda Items:  Agenda Items 12 and 13 are Postponed

LEGISLATIVE - ADMINISTRATIVE 

5. Discussion Concerning a Certificate of Appreciation to Tillamook County Transportation District
Volunteers and Staff for Service to Dialysis Patients/Commissioner Paul Fournier

6. Consideration of a Designation of Agent Resolution for Randy Thorpe, Emergency Management
Director, to Act as Agent in Obtaining Financial Assistance from Federal Mitigation Grant
Programs/Randy Thorpe, Director, Emergency Management

7. Consideration of a Designation of Agent Resolution for Chris Laity, Public Works Director, to Act as
Agent in Obtaining Financial Assistance from Federal Mitigation Grant Programs/Randy Thorpe,
Director, Emergency Management

8. Consideration of Joint Funding Agreement #25YFJFA021 with the United States Department of the
Interior, United States Geological Survey for Water Source Investigations/Randy Thorpe, Director,
Emergency Management

39

https://tillamookcounty.gov/bocc/page/meetings-agendas-minutes
https://www.youtube.com/@tillamookcounty1434
https://tillamookcounty.gov/bocc/page/meetings-agendas-minutes
https://tillamookcounty.gov/bocc/page/meetings-agendas-minutes
mailto:helpdesk@tillamookcounty.gov
bvitulli
Highlight



9. Consideration of a Prevailing Wage Rate Contract for Construction with Pacific Fence & Wire for the
Netarts Community Park Fence Installation Project/Dan Keyes, Director, Parks

10. Consideration of a Prevailing Wage Rate Contract for Construction with S-C Paving Company for the
Netarts Community Park Paving Project/Dan Keyes, Director, Parks

11. Consideration of an Order in the Matter of the Vacation of an Unnamed Alley in the Community of
Oceanside, Tillamook County, Oregon/Jasper Lind, Engineering Technician, Public Works

12. Consideration of an Order in the Matter of Adopting a Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025
and Appropriating Funds/Shawn Blanchard, Treasurer

AGENDA ITEM POSTPONED

13. Consideration of a Resolution in the Matter of Transferring Funds from Departmental Appropriations
to Contingency and Reducing Spending Authority in Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Due to State Timber
Revenue Shortfalls/Shawn Blanchard, Treasurer

AGENDA ITEM POSTPONED

14. Consideration of Modification #2 to Personal Services Agreement #6596 with Trupp HR Inc. for the
Job Reclassification Study/Rachel Hagerty, Chief Administrative Officer

15. Board Concerns

OTHER MEETINGS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Commissioners will attend a Tillamook Lightwave meeting on Tuesday, March 25, 2025 at 9:30 
a.m. The meeting will be held at the Tillamook PUD in the Carl Rawe Meeting Room, Tillamook.

The Commissioners will hold a Board Briefing on Wednesday, March 26, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. to 
discuss weekly Commissioner updates.  The meeting will be held in the Board of Commissioners' 
Meeting Room 106 in the Tillamook County Courthouse, 201 Laurel Avenue, Tillamook. The 
teleconference number is 1-971-254-3149, Conference ID: 866 914 607#. 

ADJOURN 

40



    

  
 

 

 

   

Aquatics | Fitness 
Activities for Adults 

Performing Arts Center 
Rex Champ Ball Field 

Youth Center 

The mission of  

North County Recreation 

District is to promote the 

educational, recreational, 

social and physical 

 well-being of the entire 

north Tillamook County 

community by offering 

activities for all 

ages and abilities in an 

inviting environment. 

PO Box 207 
36155 9th Street 

Nehalem OR  97131 

855.444.6273 
www.ncrd.org 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

4/7/25 

CONTACT:  Justin Smith, Executive Director, 855-444-6273 

Laura Swanson, Communications/Outreach, 503-939-5416 cell 

NCRD PARKING LOT CLOSURE UPDATE:  PREPPING MONDAY APRIL 7, TUESDAY APRIL 8, PAVING 
LATER IN THE WEEK 

(Nehalem, OR – April 7, 2025) 

Currently, Monday morning April 7th, parking lots are open at NCRD, and likely parking lots will be 
open tomorrow, Tuesday April 8th.  The contractors are preparing for the paving which will 
hopefully happen later this week – Thursday April 10th and will impact all the parking areas.  

During the closures, patrons are asked to park at the downtown Nehalem parking lot, at the 
pickleball courts or the Nehalem Bay Methodist Church – and the WAVE bus will provide free 
rides to NCRD. 

When the parking lots are closed, look for the signage at the parking areas. The Tillamook County 
Transportation District/The Wave Route 3 bus will provide a fare-free deviation as it travels north 
and south through Nehalem. Each trip will travel off route to serve the pickleball courts, the 
parking lot at Hwy. 101 and 7th Street, and the Nehalem Methodist Church lots and take 
customers to NCRD; then pick up at NCRD and reverse the extra stops along the route. Look for 
the sandwich boards in each location for the WAVE NCRD bus. Patrons should be at the lots a few 
minutes before those scheduled times and can board for free after telling the driver they wish to 
go to NCRD.  

Here are the times each Route 3 trip is scheduled to be in Nehalem: 5:53a, 6:15, 8:58, 10:00, 
10:58, 12:00noon, 1:38p, 2:00p, 3:28p, 4:30p, 7:13p and 8:15p 

A reminder that NCRD is still an active construction zone – no parking in the lower lot by the new 
aquatics center, and obey all NO PARKING signage. Please bring your patience with you when 
parking at NCRD and be respectful of the neighbors by not blocking driveways or entrances.  If you 
can carpool to classes or events, please do so to lessen the impacts. Do not utilize the City rights-
of-way as parking spaces, especially on the east side of 9th Street. There are cones and signage, 
please do not remove the cones/signage, and obey the restrictions. 

There are likely to be some changes to the paving schedule and we may have to close the parking 
lots to accommodate equipment, and preparations for the paving and striping. 

“We appreciate the patience – we’ll say it again – of our patrons and our neighbors as we 
negotiate the final stages of the construction of the new Aquatics Center,” said Justin Smith, 
Executive Director. 

If you have questions, please call 855-444-6273, or go to www.ncrd.org. 

41

http://www.ncrd.org/


Regular Meeting March 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Wednesday, March 19, 2025 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order:   Board Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair (via Zoom) 
Gary Hanenkrat, Director  
Marni Johnston, Treasurer 
Jonathan Bean, Secretary 

Absent 
TCTD Board of Directors 
Linda Adler, Vice Chair 
Thomas Fiorelli, Director 

TCTD Staff 
Brian Vitulli, General Manager 
Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor 
Jules Deputy, Brokerage Manager (Absent) 
Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent  
Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk 

Guest 
Jeremy Mills, Citizen 
David McCall, Citizen 
John Cline, Citizen 

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Director Fiorelli resigned.

5. Public & Guest Comments: Jeremy Mills stated that the bus stops are not accurate
on the schedules that are posted and to have someone correct them. John Cline
wanted to thank the Board members and administration staff for being here.

6. Executive Session: None.

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

7. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the January 2025 financials included
in the Board packet pages 1-24.

42



Regular Meeting March 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Director Johnson asked for Director Adler about the NW Rides Account and why there 
is no interest income. FS Bond stated that it is not an interest bearing account. Director 
Johnson asked for Director Adler about the Operation expense – ODOT meeting from 
page 19. FS Bond responded that the charge is from the ODOT Compliance Site 
Review for two days. Director Johnson asked for Director Adler about the charge from 
page 20 for Operations meal. OS Reed responded that it was a business lunch. 

8. Service Measure Performance Report: OS Reed provided service statistics and
performance measures for the month of January 2025 and are included in the Board
packet pages 25-33.

GM Vitulli stated that the ridership statistics still show negative numbers due to the
service reduction in March 2024 and Sunday service suspension in May 2025. In a
couple of months there will be a true comparison.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli provided updates on the March
2025 meeting, with details included in the Board packet pages 34-37.

10. NW Rides Brokerage: FS Bond provided updates for the month of February 2025
and are included in the Board packet pages 38-40.

FS Bond stated that IT will be installing necessary networking infrastructure in early
April and furniture for the brokerage will be delivered by mid-April. Anticipate operating
in the new space by the end of April 2025.

11. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in
Board packet pages 41-42 (see GM Report in packet for details):

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Development
e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

Director Johnston asked if the STIF fund and billion-dollar account error will have any 
effect on TCTD. GM Vitulli stated that it is unclear and will share update if necessary. 

12. Miscellaneous: None.

CONSENT CALENDAR 

13. Motion by Director Bean to Approve the Minutes of February 19, 2025, Regular
Board Meeting with noted correction on top of page 45. Seconded by Director
Johnston.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Johnson, Directors Bean, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Vice Chair Adler absent. 

43



Regular Meeting March 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

14. Motion by Director Johnston to Approve January 2025 Financial Statements.
Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Johnson, Directors Bean, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
 Vice Chair Adler absent. 

15. Motion by Chair Johnson to Appoint FY 25-26 Budget Committee Members.
Seconded by Director Johnston.

 Motion Passed 
By Chair Johnson, Directors Bean, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Vice Chair Adler absent. 

ACTION ITEMS 

16. Resolution 25-06 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment
Number 1 to ODOT Section 5339 Grant Agreement Number 35328.

Chair Johnson asked for Director Adler why the change in fuel type from propane back
to diesel. GM Vitulli stated that it was due to the unavailability of a propane Class B
trolley and also the lack of Altoona testing being done on such a vehicle. The heavier-
duty Class B trolley is currently only manufactured with a diesel engine.

Director Hanenkrat asked about air brakes and will the drivers need to have their CDL
upgraded. GM Vitulli stated yes that new drivers were trained for and currently hold a
Class B CDL. In the next few months, the majority of the current drivers will be
upgraded.

Motion by Director to Bean to Approve Resolution 25-06 Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to ODOT Section 5339 Grant
Agreement No. 35328. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Johnson, Directors Bean, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Vice Chair Adler absent. 

17. Appointment to Board of Directors – Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025).

Chair Johnson stated that this is an Action Item to fill the vacant Position 1 seat on
the Board of Directors.

Director Johnston stated that she appreciates the willingness of the applicants to be
on the Board of Directors. This has been a Discussion Item for two months, in
January and February.

Chair Johnson stated that she knows David McCall professionally, how he conducts
business, and that he does attend meetings. She added that she respects James
Heffernan, but does not feel that reappointment is warranted.

44



Regular Meeting March 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Director Hanenkrat stated that James Heffernan has filed for Position 1. 

Motion by Director Johnston to Appoint Mr. David McCall to the Board of Directors – 
Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025). Seconded by Chair Johnson. 

Motion Passed 
By Chair Johnson, Directors Bean, and Johnston. 

Director Hanenkrat opposed. 
Director Fiorelli and 

Vice Chair Adler absent. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

18. Staff Comments:

General Manager Vitulli: Stated that the District will advertise for the newly vacated
Board of Directors - Position 4 seat, and will add it as an Action Item for the next Board
meeting.

Operations Superintendent Reed: None

Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that she appreciates GM Vitulli supporting the
Transportation District and doing an interview with the Headlight Herald regarding the
dialysis center and how the District stepped up to provide transportation services for
dialysis patients. FS Bond added that when she went to Sunset Empire Transportation
District to assist on an interview panel for a new employee, she was told how much
they respect GM Vitulli’s professionalism.

Brokerage Manager Deputy: Absent

Admin Assistant Brown: None

19. Board of Directors Comments:

Chair Johnson: Stated that she will not be able to attend the April 16th meeting.
Welcomed David McCall and appreciates his service. Thanked the staff for all they
do.

Vice Chair Adler: Absent

Dir. Hanenkrat: Stated to advertise for Board of Directors Position 4, and to take action
in April.

Dir. Johnston: Stated that she has seen some social media where people don’t
understand the service trade-off from the Dial-A-Ride service to help the dialysis
customers and the impact. GM Vitulli made that point during the Headlight Herald
article. Dir. Johnston said with Director Fiorelli resigning, there will be two months of
schedule conflicts for her and Chair Johnson on April 16th and May 14th. GM Vitulli

45



Regular Meeting March 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

responded that staff will follow up by offering alternative dates for the April Board 
meeting and the May Budget Committee meeting.  

Dir. Bean: Stated his wife took the Route 5 service and that the bus had a flat tire. He 
said she was impressed with the response by District employees and that she felt very 
safe. 

Dir. Fiorelli: Absent 

20. Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:16 pm.

These minutes were approved this 15th day of April 2025. 

ATTEST: 

     Mary Johnson, Board Chair      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

46



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35084

Version 2
Capital, Operating   5311

Page 1 of  7

AMENDMENT NUMBER 2
ODOT GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 35084

Tillamook County Transportation District

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as State, and  Tillamook County Transportation District , hereinafter referred to as 
Recipient, entered into an Agreement on July 29, 2021 and Amendment 1 (one) on October 
10, 2024. Said Agreement is to secure financial assistance to complete the activities described in 
Exhibit A.

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above, although 
remaining in full force and effect, shall be amended to extend the Agreement period and revise 
Exhibit A. 

Page 1, Agreement, Paragraph 1, which reads:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of  July 29, 2021 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2025 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of  July 29, 2021 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2027 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Exhibit A shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached Revised Exhibit A. 
All references to "Exhibit A" shall hereinafter be referred to as "Revised Exhibit A."

4747



Page 2 of  7

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35084

This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which
when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding
that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so
executed shall constitute an original.

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

4848



Page 3 of  7

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35084

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By
(Legally designated representative)

Name
(printed)

Date

By

Name
(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By
Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:
Brian  Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 03/25/2025

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

By
Assistant Attorney General

Name Sam Zeigler by email
(printed)

Date 05/21/2021

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov

4949



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35084

Page 4 of  7

Revised Exhibit A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work  

Project Title: 5311 Tillamook County Transportation District 35084
NWConnector Transit Access Project: Phase 2 -- Construction.

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-21-3499-01 Item #1: Passenger Shelters

$727,544.00 $582,035.00 $145,509.00 Local
P-21-3499-02 Item #1: Project Admin.

$20,000.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 Local
Sub Total $747,544.00 $598,035.00 $149,509.00
Grand Total $747,544.00 $598,035.00 $149,509.00

1. BACKGROUND

In the 2017 legislative session, the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 2017, the Statewide
Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF). The bill designated nine percent of the total funds
appropriated to be awarded to eligible Public Transportation Service Providers (PTSPs) based
on a competitive grant process. This nine percent is divided into a five-percent share for STIF
Discretionary projects and a four-percent share for STIF Intercommunity Discretionary projects.

The STIF Discretionary fund is a flexible fund source that aims to expand or improve public
transportation services by supporting projects that create new service routes, adopt enhanced
forms of technology and data collection, maintain transit fleets in a state of good repair, and
advance the equity and sustainability of transportation in the state.

The STIF Intercommunity Discretionary fund is housed with FTA Section 5311(f) funds under the
"Statewide Transit Network Program." The purpose of the Statewide Transit Network Program
is to support projects that enhance Oregon's statewide fixed route transit network by investing
in key transit hubs, closing gaps between two or more communities, improving access to and
from transit for pedestrians and bicyclists, improving collaboration and coordination between
agencies that results in functional benefits, or other activities that improve the function of the
overall transit network and serve the interests of more than one transit agency.

This Agreement describes the duties and responsibilities of State and Recipient in the
management and proper use of STIF funds or 5311(f) funds and the associated reporting
requirements.

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Provide funding to design, purchase, construct and install, approximately three bus passenger
shelters, three bus route signs including sign posts, and three amenities to support the
transportation needs of the general public and seniors and individuals with disabilities. The
stops in this project are located in Lincoln County at Rays Market in Waldport Lat/Long
44.42964,-124.06047 and Tillamook County in Pacific City Alder Street and Cape Kiwanda Drive
Lat/Long 45.21498,-123.96963.

The purpose of the project is to provide shelter from weather, passenger amenities such as
benches for the comfort and convenience of riders, and signage for transit route information.

Eligible expenses are: associated services, permits, permissions, and equipment needed to put
the passenger shelters, signs, and amenities into service; costs incurred from the procurement
process; delivery charges; and post-delivery inspections. Architecture, Design, Engineering,
Planning, and Preparation services and permits, clearly needed to proceed with the project, are
eligible reimbursable expenses.

5050



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35084

Page 5 of  7

A Documented Categorical Exclusion worksheet or Categorical Exclusion worksheet may
be submitted to State to establish a historical benchmark. State-funded shelters, signs, or
amenities projects must comply with state and local procurement and construction rules.

PROJECT DELIVERABLES, TASKS and SCHEDULE
Recipient will submit final design, site plans and associated maps showing shelter, sign, and
amenity locations. Recipient will submit certification attesting to any applicable permits,
inspections, or other requirements prior to final payment. State may perform an on-site
inspection or request photos of installations prior to final payment.

a. Recipient shall procure, and hire a consultant to finalize design work of stop projects.

b. Recipient shall procure, and hire a general contractor/project manager who will be able to
perform or supervise the following:
- Project Management
- Final design consultation with consultant, and ODOT Development and Review.
- Work with local cities, or ODOT for all construction permits, as well right of way permits.
- Construction and construction oversight, to stay on time and budget.

c. Recipient shall contact local jurisdictions to confirm stop locations, design of stops, and that
stops are agreeable between transit agencies, and local jurisdictions. Recipient shall send local
jurisdictions agreeability to State for files. State shall transmit agreeability of local jurisdictions
to contractor completing Documented Categorical Exclusion for Federal Transit Administration for
approval.

d. Recipient shall require Project Manager/Contractor to work with ODOT Senior Transportation
Planner, from Region 2, Astoria for assistance in Right of Way permitting where applicable.

e. Recipient shall require Project Manager/Contractor to submit reports to Recipient regarding
progress of project. Recipient shall work with Project Manager/Contractor to determine if weekly,
bi-weekly, or monthly reports are acceptable.

f. Recipient shall attach reports submitted by Project Manager/Contractor quarterly to
reimbursement for this agreement.

By accepting funds, Recipient certifies that the project will meet all Americans with Disabilities
Act requirements as set forth in 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38.
Recipient will submit final photographs of completed project, at time of final submission of
reimbursement.

All purchases, installations, and construction must be completed prior to the expiration date of
this Agreement. If an extension for time is required, a request must be received by State at least
45 days prior to the expiration date.

RFP/IFB Issue Date: February 14, 2025
Contract Award Date: February 28, 2025
Initial Delivery Date: June 30, 2026
Final Delivery Date: May 31, 2027
Contract Completion Date: June 30, 2027

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Recipient retains authority over costs and allocations of STIF funds within the guidelines
established by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 184.751 through 184.758 and Oregon
Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 732.

Eligible matching fund sources for this Agreement include Special Transportation Formula
Funds, local funds, service contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash
donations, and other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project budget.
Recipient may not use passenger fares as match. Administration and facility contributions are

5151



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35084

Page 6 of  7

documented by percentage of contribution directly attributed to the project.

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. The required local match share will be
subtracted from the project expenses to determine the Agreement share of the project expense.

Receipt of federal funds for construction projects requires that labor must be paid at the
prevailing wage as prescribed by the Davis-Bacon Act.

Purchases or charges that are otherwise paid for in other agreements or contracts are excluded.

4. REPORTING AND INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Recipient agrees to assess and report the condition of facility and all capital assets within the
facility. Recipient will report as prescribed by State on shelters, signs, and amenities purchased
or constructed under this Agreement as long as they remain in use for public transportation
service.

Copies of invoices for vendor charges must be submitted with reimbursement requests. In-
house charges may be documented in a spreadsheet or with copies of timesheets showing time
specifically associated with the project. In addition, Recipient must submit a cover letter or
summary of the total expenses for work performed.

Expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's scope is changed or altered without the
necessary approval and amendment by State.

Recipient shall confirm the eligibility of any Sub-Recipient prior to distributing STIF moneys and
entering into an agreement with the Sub-Recipient. Recipient shall ensure that Sub-Recipients
maintain eligibility throughout the project period. Recipient shall provide State with copies of
agreement(s) made with Sub-Recipients within 30 days of execution of those agreements.

Per OAR 732-044-0040(1)(a), Recipient shall report on Project progress, outcomes achieved,
and expenditures of discretionary STIF funds by itself and its Sub-Recipients. Failure to use
STIF funds towards achievement of identified project deliverables may result in the cessation of
funding to Recipient for the remainder of the Agreement period.

Project Progress Reporting

Recipient shall report Project progress quarterly through the Oregon Public Transit Information
System (OPTIS) Agency Periodic Report (APR) and shall include a brief status update for each
deliverable. Project reporting should align with project deliverables identified in this Agreement.
State will use reporting information to assess Recipient's progress by comparing task-based
expenditures to progress on deliverables.

Outcomes Achieved Reporting

Recipient shall report outcomes achieved through project performance. Continued funding under
this Agreement is contingent upon reporting of outcomes achieved.

On a quarterly basis, in addition to continuing required elements in the APR, Recipient shall
complete a short narrative describing outcomes achieved in performance of the Project. For
the final quarter of the biennium, Recipient shall report on quarterly outcomes achieved as well
as summarize outcomes achieved over the duration of the Agreement. Recipient shall provide
additional information on outcomes achieved when and where directed to do so by State in
reporting guidance.

Outcomes achieved are defined in State's program guidance and that guidance provides State's
expectations surrounding all reporting requirements. For detailed instructions on quarterly,
annual, and biennial reporting, refer to State's STIF Discretionary/STN Reporting Guidance
document.

5252



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35084

Page 7 of  7

Expenditures

Expenditures of STIF Discretionary funds will be tracked in OPTIS. Recipient must submit
reimbursement requests in OPTIS to receive reimbursement for Project expenditures.

FOR CAPITAL ASSET AGREEMENTS:

Recipient shall ensure Satisfactory Continuing Control of capital assets, including real property,
purchased in whole or part under this Agreement while the capital assets are being used for
public transportation purposes. Satisfactory Continuing Control means the legal assurance that a
capital asset will remain available to be used for its originally-authorized purpose throughout its
useful life or until disposition.

An inventory of capital assets purchased in whole or in part with STIF funds will be created by
State in the OPTIS asset register. The inventory will include a description of the capital asset,
the date of purchase, the date put into public transportation service, the purchase price, the
amount of STIF funds contributed to the purchase, the source of other funds, the authorized use
per this agreement, the Recipient or Sub-Recipient using the capital asset (Owner/Operator),
and the condition of the asset. Recipient shall report quarterly on all capital assets through the
OPTIS APR, providing information relevant to purchased capital assets, including but not limited
to, asset condition, and vehicle mileage.

Recipient shall request authorization from State for the sale, transfer, or other disposition of any
Capital Asset purchased under this Agreement and shall report the amount of proceeds, if any,
from the sale to State. Capital asset useful life standards shall be the same as those outlined by
the Federal Transit Administration.

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the capital asset purchases
under this Agreement as long as the capital asset remain in public transportation service.

Reimbursement requests for capital assets must include the following: a cover letter and copies
of all invoices associated with expenses identified for reimbursement.

Reporting on Mitigation of Tax Impacts to Low-income Populations

Per OAR 732-040-0025(1), Qualified Entities receiving STIF funds shall submit a report on any
actions taken by any PTSP located within the area of the Qualified Entity to mitigate the impact
of the STIF tax on passengers who reside in low-income communities. This report must be
submitted no later than 60 days after the end of each fiscal year in which the Qualified Entity
receives STIF funds.

If Recipient is a Qualified Entity, Recipient shall submit this report as instructed separately from
this Agreement and shall attach all responses submitted to Recipient by PTSPs receiving STIF
discretionary funds that detail actions taken by those PTSPs.

5353



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing the General Manager ) 
to Execute Amendment Number 1 ) 
to ODOT Section 5311 Grant ) 
Agreement Number 35325 ) RESOLUTION NO. 25-08 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (District) has received a 
grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) under Section 5311 of the 
Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, for vehicle purchases; and 

WHEREAS, on August 2, 2022, the District entered into ODOT Grant Agreement 
Number 35325, memorializing a grant in the total amount of $296,109; however for 
Amendment Number 1, the grant amount is $179,460; and 

WHEREAS, the District and ODOT mutually desire to modify Exhibit A to extend 
the Grant Agreement period to December 31, 2025 to allow for the District to purchase 
two, Category E Dial-A-Ride vehicles with a useful life of four years or 100,000 miles; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 
Manager to execute Amendment Number 1 to Grant Agreement Number 35325 to 
extend the Grant Agreement period to December 31, 2025 to allow the District to 
purchase two, Category E Dial-A-Ride vehicles with a useful life of four years or 100,000 
miles. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute 
Amendment Number 1 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35325 in the amount of 
$179,460 on behalf of the Tillamook County Transportation District to purchase two, 
Category E Dial-A-Ride vehicles by December 31, 2025. 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of April 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

54



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35325

Version 1
Capital   5311

Page 1 of  5

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1
ODOT GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 35325

Tillamook County Transportation District

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as State, and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as Recipient, 
entered into an Agreement on August 2, 2022. Said Agreement is to secure financial assistance 
to complete the activities described in Exhibit A.

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above, although 
remaining in full force and effect, shall be amended to extend the Agreement period and revise 
Exhibit A. 

Page 1, Agreement, Paragraph 1, which reads:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2022 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2025 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2022 or the date
when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless otherwise
terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project Costs
incurred on or before December 31, 2025 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Exhibit A shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached Revised Exhibit A. 
All references to "Exhibit A" shall hereinafter be referred to as "Revised Exhibit A."

5555



Page 2 of  5

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35325

This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which
when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding
that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so
executed shall constitute an original.

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

5656



Page 3 of  5

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35325

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By
(Legally designated representative)

Name
(printed)

Date

By

Name
(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By
Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:
Brian  Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 03/27/2025

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

By
Assistant Attorney General

Name Sam Zeigler by email
(printed)

Date 05/21/2021

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov

5757



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35325

Page 4 of  5

Revised Exhibit A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work  

Project Title: STBG Tillamook County TD 35325
Replace 2 Category E modified minivans and 1 small bus used to provide the TCTD dial-a-ride
service

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-21-1848-01 Item #1: Vans

$200,000.00 $179,460.00 $20,540.00 State
P-21-1848-01 Item #2: Bus < 30ft

$130,000.00 $116,649.00 $13,351.00 State
Sub Total $330,000.00 $296,109.00 $33,891.00
Grand Total $330,000.00 $296,109.00 $33,891.00

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Purchase 2 transit vehicles as follows: useful life: 4 years and 100,000 miles; approximate
length: 20 feet; estimated number of seats: 7; estimated number of ADA securement stations:
3; fuel type: propane. 

Purchase 1 transit vehicles as follows: useful life: 5 years and 150,000 miles; approximate
length: 22 feet; estimated number of seats: 14; estimated number of ADA securement stations:
2; fuel type: propane.  

Purchase includes all equipment and supplies necessary to put the vehicles into service. 

The following vehicles have been approved for replacement in this Agreement:

1. V001700; 2016/Dodge/Caravan; 2C7WDGBG9GR262362.
2. V001701; 2016/Dodge/Caravan; 2C7WDGBG9GR313732.
3. V001653; 2015/Chevrolet/Goshen; 1GB3GSBG1G1189474.

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, SCHEDULE and USE

All purchases and installations must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement. 

Expected order date: July 1, 2022
Expected delivery date: December 31, 2025

For vehicles procured using State Price Agreement contracts managed by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services, all vehicle orders will be reviewed and approved by
State prior to submission to selected vendor. State is responsible for submitting vehicle orders
to selected vendor. If Recipient does not purchase from the State Price Agreement contracts
managed by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, Requests for Proposals to
procure the vehicles must be reviewed by State prior to solicitation for bids. All vehicle orders
will be reviewed by State prior to submission to the selected vendor.

This Agreement provides funding to purchase passenger transportation vehicles to be used to
provide public transportation service. Public transportation service is defined as service to the
general public or special populations such as seniors and individuals with disabilities. Recipient
may use the vehicles to coordinate public and human service transportation services with other
agencies. Recipient will not lease the vehicles to another agency without the permission of State.

State will retain title to the vehicles as primary security interest holder as long as the vehicles

5858



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35325

Page 5 of  5

remain in public transportation service. Recipient must request permission from State to release
title for disposal when planning to sell or transfer a vehicle which has exceeded the minimum
useful standard for age or mileage, and must notify State when actual disposal has been
completed. Recipient must request permission from State in advance to transfer or otherwise
dispose of a vehicle prior to its meeting federal useful life standards. Recipient must request
permission from State to release title for changes. 

Recipient will create and maintain a vehicle maintenance plan that utilizes the original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) maintenance requirements for each vehicle and meets FTA transit asset
management requirements in 49 CFR 625. Recipient will follow the plan to ensure each vehicle is
maintained in a state of good repair.  Recipient will provide State a copy of the maintenance plan
upon request.

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Eligible expenses that may be charged to this Agreement include grant administration, the
cost of the procurement process, delivery charges and post-delivery inspections. Aftermarket
equipment, graphics and other items directly associated with these vehicles and required to put
the vehicles into service are eligible. Purchase of an extended warranty is an eligible expense;
however, the eligible warranty shall not exceed the defined useful life of the vehicles. Licensing
and other post-delivery expenses are not eligible for reimbursement. 

Recipient will provide matching funding from non-federal source(s). Sources of funding that
may be used as matching funding for this Agreement include Special Transportation Formula
Funds, local funds, service contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash
donations, and other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project budget.
Recipient may not use passenger fares as matching funding.  

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. Under this Agreement, State will bear the sum
remaining after the amount of Recipient's required share of local matching funds is subtracted
from the total project expenses. Recipient may not count the same costs twice if they have
multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible.  

4. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the vehicles purchased
under this Agreement as long as the vehicles remain in public transportation service. Recipient
will submit a request for reimbursement in a format provided by State. Reimbursement requests
must include the following: a cover letter and copies of all invoices associated with expenses
identified for reimbursement. Pre-award and post-delivery certification forms documenting
compliance to Altoona bus testing, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, Buy America, and
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements.

5959



60


	1 Board Packet Cover 4.15.2025
	Agenda 4.15.2025 Final
	REGULAR MEETING
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	CONSENT
	ACTION ITEMS
	17. Resolution 25-07 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 2 to ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement Number 35084 (Pgs.47-53)
	18. Resolution 25-08 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement Number 35325 (Pgs.54-59)
	19. Appointment to Board of Directors – Position 4 (Expiring June 30, 2027) (Pg.60)
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	UPCOMING EVENTS

	Board binder
	8.1 Financial and Grant Reports February 2025.pdf
	9.1 Service Performance Report 02.2025
	TCTD Operations Statistics & Performance�February 2025
	YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE
	IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE�YTD COMPS
	DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE�YTD COMPS
	PASSENGER CATEGORIES�YTD COMPS
	TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP�February 2025 & February 2024

	9.3 Primary Performance Measure 02.2025.pdf
	10.1 2025.04.11 NWOTA Meeting Agenda.pdf
	10.2 2025.03.13 NWOTA Minutes.pdf
	11 NW Rides April Board Meeting.pdf
	12 GM Report_April 2025.pdf
	12.1 TCTD Steps Up For Dialysis Patients_03262025.pdf
	12.2 BOCC Agenda_March 26, 2025_2.pdf
	12.3 NCRDParkingLotClosureUPDATE4.7.pdf
	14 3.19.2025 Minutes_FINAL.pdf
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	Absent
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor
	Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent
	Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk
	Guest
	Jeremy Mills, Citizen
	David McCall, Citizen
	John Cline, Citizen
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Director Fiorelli resigned.
	5. Public & Guest Comments: Jeremy Mills stated that the bus stops are not accurate on the schedules that are posted and to have someone correct them. John Cline wanted to thank the Board members and administration staff for being here.
	6. Executive Session: None.
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	7. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the January 2025 financials included in the Board packet pages 1-24.
	Director Johnson asked for Director Adler about the NW Rides Account and why there is no interest income. FS Bond stated that it is not an interest bearing account. Director Johnson asked for Director Adler about the Operation expense – ODOT meeting f...
	10. NW Rides Brokerage: FS Bond provided updates for the month of February 2025 and are included in the Board packet pages 38-40.
	FS Bond stated that IT will be installing necessary networking infrastructure in early April and furniture for the brokerage will be delivered by mid-April. Anticipate operating in the new space by the end of April 2025.
	11. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in Board packet pages 41-42 (see GM Report in packet for details):
	a. Administration/Coordination
	b. Planning Development
	c. Grant Funding
	d. Facility/Property Development
	e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance
	Director Johnston asked if the STIF fund and billion-dollar account error will have any effect on TCTD. GM Vitulli stated that it is unclear and will share update if necessary.
	12. Miscellaneous: None.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ACTION ITEMS
	Chair Johnson asked for Director Adler why the change in fuel type from propane back to diesel. GM Vitulli stated that it was due to the unavailability of a propane Class B trolley and also the lack of Altoona testing being done on such a vehicle. The...
	Director Hanenkrat asked about air brakes and will the drivers need to have their CDL upgraded. GM Vitulli stated yes that new drivers were trained for and currently hold a Class B CDL. In the next few months, the majority of the current drivers will ...
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	18. Staff Comments:
	General Manager Vitulli: Stated that the District will advertise for the newly vacated Board of Directors - Position 4 seat, and will add it as an Action Item for the next Board meeting.
	Operations Superintendent Reed: None
	Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that she appreciates GM Vitulli supporting the Transportation District and doing an interview with the Headlight Herald regarding the dialysis center and how the District stepped up to provide transportation services fo...
	Brokerage Manager Deputy: Absent
	Admin Assistant Brown: None
	19. Board of Directors Comments:
	Chair Johnson: Stated that she will not be able to attend the April 16th meeting. Welcomed David McCall and appreciates his service. Thanked the staff for all they do.
	Vice Chair Adler: Absent
	Dir. Hanenkrat: Stated to advertise for Board of Directors Position 4, and to take action in April.
	Dir. Johnston: Stated that she has seen some social media where people don’t understand the service trade-off from the Dial-A-Ride service to help the dialysis customers and the impact. GM Vitulli made that point during the Headlight Herald article. ...
	Dir. Bean: Stated his wife took the Route 5 service and that the bus had a flat tire. He said she was impressed with the response by District employees and that she felt very safe.
	Dir. Fiorelli: Absent
	20. Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:16 pm.
	These minutes were approved this 15th day of April 2025.
	ATTEST:

	17.2 25-07 35084 Amendment 2.pdf
	18.1 25-08 ODOT Agreement 35325 Amendment 1.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
	RESOLUTION NO. 25-08
	ATTEST:

	18.2 25-08 35325 Amendment 1.pdf
	19 BOD Application_Nan Devlin_Redacted.pdf




